
 NOTICE and AGENDA for 
 

Kalamazoo County Consolidated Dispatch Authority 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

March 14, 2024 – Regular Meeting 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a REGULAR Meeting of the Kalamazoo County Consolidated Dispatch Authority (KCCDA) 
Board of Directors will be held in the Chief Switalski Meeting Room at KCCDA, 7040 Stadium Drive, Kalamazoo, 
Michigan on Thursday, March 14th, 2024 at 3:30 p.m. for consideration of items, namely, on this Agenda.   

ITEM 1 – CALL TO ORDER 

ITEM 2 – ROLL CALL 
Western Michigan University  
Jan VanDerKley, Chairperson (Alt. T. Moored) 

City of Kalamazoo 
Jim Ritsema, Vice-Chairperson (Alt. J. Chamberlain) 

Western Michigan University 
Scott Merlo (Alt. T. Unangst) 

City of Kalamazoo 
Matt Huber (Alt. D. Boysen) 

City of Portage 
Pat McGinnis (Alt. A. Herringa) 

Township of Kalamazoo 
Don Martin, Treasurer (Alt. Undesignated) 

City of Portage 
Victor Ledbetter (Alt. P. Randall) 

Township of Kalamazoo 
Steven Leuty (Alt. Undesignated) 

Kalamazoo County Board of Commissioners 
Dale Deleeuw (Alt. J. Heppler) 

Kalamazoo County Fire Chiefs Association 
Greg McComb (Alt. C. Tackett) 

Kalamazoo County Sheriff 
Richard Fuller, Secretary (Alt. J. VanDyken) 

Michigan State Police 
Scott Ernstes (Alt. C. McRae) 

Kalamazoo County Medical Control Authority 
William Fales (Alt. C. Dieringer) 

ITEM 3 – APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
A. January 11th – Regular Meeting

ITEM 4 – CITIZENS’ TIME 
The Board welcomes members of the public to express their ideas or concerns about issues affecting Kalamazoo County 
Consolidated Dispatch Authority. Members of the public wishing to speak are requested to stand and state their full name 
and address for the record. Each member of the public is limited to four minutes or less. 

ITEM 5 – FOR CONSIDERATION 
A. Executive Director Report

1. Administrative Monthly Report
2. January and February Reconciliation Reports
3. Year-to-Date Budget Performance Report:

a. Fiscal Year 2023
b. Fiscal Year 2024 – General Fund & Capital Projects Fund

4. Correspondence:
a. Capture of RAI Jets Summer and Winter 2022 TIR Return of Local Taxes

B. Committee Reports
1. Executive Committee – Jan Van Der Kley

a. Meeting Minutes from January 9th, 2024 (Informational only)

2. Personnel Committee – Pat McGinnis
a. Meeting Minutes from February 16th, 2024 (Informational only)

b. NEW Personnel Policy 3.18 – Dependent Care Assistance Program



c. MI Tri-Share Memorandum of Understanding with Southwest Child Care Resources
d. Dependent Care Assistance Program Administrative Guidelines
e. Letter of Understanding with UAW – Dependent Care Assistance Program
f. Executive Director 2023 Performance Appraisal
g. 2024 Executive Director Performance Objectives

3. Technical Advisory Committee – Scott Merlo
a. Meeting Minutes from January 10th, 2024 (Informational only)

4. Finance Committee – Don Martin
C. Old Business
D. New Business

ITEM 6 – OTHER ITEMS 
A. Announcements and Member Comments
B. Next regular scheduled meeting – May 9th, 2024 (Chief Switalski Meeting Room)

ITEM 7 – ADJOURNMENT 

KCCDA meetings are open to all without regard to religion, race, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, height, 
weight, familial status, marital status, disability, or any other legally protected class.  The KCCDA will provide special aid or assistance to attend a KCCDA 
meeting and will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials 
being considered at the meeting/hearing, to individuals with disabilities, upon four (4) business days’ notice to the KCCDA.  Individuals with disabilities 
requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact KCCDA by emailing admin@kccda911.org or calling (269) 488-8911. 

mailto:admin@kccda911.org


MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

January 11, 2024 

ITEM 1 – CALL TO ORDER 

The Regular Meeting of the Kalamazoo County Consolidated Dispatch Authority Board was called to order 
by Chairperson Jim Ritsema at 3:30 p.m. in the Chief Switalski Meeting Room, Kalamazoo County 
Consolidated Dispatch Authority, 7040 Stadium Drive, Kalamazoo, Michigan on Thursday, January 11, 
2024. 

ITEM 2 – ROLL CALL 

Members Present:  Jim Ritsema, Matt Huber, Pat McGinnis, Craig Dieringer, Don Martin, Steven Leuty, 
Tracie Moored, Scott Merlo, Greg McComb 

Others Present:  Kevin Catlin, Chad Tackett, Jeff Troyer, Victoria Rose, Chris McComb 

ITEM 3 – ORGANIZATIONAL ITEMS 

A. Election of 2024 Officers – Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Treasurer and Clerk

“Motion by Mr. McGinnis, second by Mr. Merlo to nominate the current Board, Chairperson Jan 
VanDerKley, Vice-Chairperson Jim Ritsema, Treasurer Don Martin and Clerk Richard Fuller to 
serve in the same capacity as the 2024 KCCDA Board of Directors.” 

On a voice vote, MOTION CARRIED. 

ITEM 4 – APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

A. Minutes of the November 9, 2023, Regular Meeting

“Motion by Mr. Huber, second by Mr. Merlo to approve the minutes of the November 7, 2023, 
Regular Meeting as presented.” 

On a voice vote, MOTION CARRIED. 

ITEM 5 – CITIZENS’ TIME 

There was none. 

ITEM 6 - FOR CONSIDERATION 

A. Executive Director Report

Board Packet - Page #1



1. Administrative Monthly Report

Mr. Troyer stated the monthly reports were all included in the packet and presented a review of the 
material.  

2. November and December 2023 Reconcilia�on Report

Mr. Troyer stated the November and December 2023 Reconcilia�on Reports were included in the packet 
and there were no anomalies. 

3. Year-to-Date Budget Performance Report (2023)

Mr. Troyer stated the Year-to-Date Budget Performance Report for 2023 was included in the packet.  He 
noted that nothing from 2024 was posted yet. 

4. Correspondence

There was none. 

B. Committee Reports

1. Executive Committee – Jim Ritsema

a. Meeting Minutes from November 7, 2023, Regular Meeting

Mr. Ritsema stated the meeting minutes were presented in the packet. 

2. Personnel Committee – Pat McGinnis

Mr. McGinnis had nothing to report from the Personnel Committee. 

3. Technical Advisory Committee – Scott Merlo

Mr. Merlo stated the Committee met; however, he had nothing to report. 

4. Finance Committee – Don Martin

Mr. Martin had nothing to report from the Finance Committee. 

C. Old Business

There was none. 

D. New Business

1. Michigan Local Cybersecurity Grant Program – Local Consent Agreement

Mr. Troyer stated approval of the Consent Agreement is required to be eligible for one of the three 
categories of grant funds from the Michigan Local Cybersecurity Grant Program. Administration is 
interested in the Endpoint Detection and Response Software licensing. The agreement has been 
reviewed by legal counsel. 

Board Packet - Page #2



McGinnis, Mar�n CARRIED 

“Motion by Mr. McGinnis, second by Mr. Martin to approve and authorize the Executive Director to 
executive the Local Consent Agreement for the Michigan Local Cybersecurity Grant Program as 
presented.” 

On a voice vote, MOTION CARRIED. 

ITEM 7 – OTHER ITEMS 

A. Announcements and Member Comments  

Mr. Martin inquired if progress has been made on the daycare program. 

Mr. Troyer stated staff did research and are working to develop administrative guidelines so if an 
employee doesn’t meet TriShare program requirements, they will still have an alternative through 
KCCDA for a one third reimbursement. There will be a Personnel Committee meeting in February to 
discuss.  

B. Next regular scheduled meeting – March 14, 2024 (Chief Switalski Meeting Room) 

ITEM 8 - ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:47 p.m. 

 

      

      _________________________________________ 
      Chris McComb 
      Deputy Clerk of KCCDA Board of Directors 

 

Board Packet - Page #3



  
 1 | P a g e   

 

KCCDA Administrative Report 
February 2024 

(Completed March 6, 2024) 
 

 

Meetings, Discussions, Conference Calls, & Events 

The following is a summary of meetings/conference calls, events, and presentations attended by 
KCCDA’s Administrative Team during the timeframe indicated above: 

 40 – Meetings, Video/Telephone Conferences, and Presentations 
 
Tasks and/or Projects 
The following are tasks worked on by the KCCDA Administration during this period.      

• 2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 
The following is a list of Capital Improvement Projects approved for 2024: 

 
o #1 – Primary PSAP UPS Battery Replacement (Budget: $60,000) 

This project has not been started.   
 

o #2 – CAD and Mobile Computing System (Budget: Software-$1,250,000 & Servers-$500,000) 
Administration has evaluated all four proposals and sent each vendor a list of questions 
regarding their proposal.  Responses were received from each vendor before the 
deadline and reference checks were conducted on all four using a survey form.  
Administration is awaiting until vacation and FMLA leaves are complete to evaluate the 
responses to determine whether any of the systems are worth investing in versus the 
existing system and if so, narrow the proposals to the top two.  Once this process is 
complete, KCCDA’s full CAD and Mobile Review Team will begin evaluating the finalists – 
first, conducting site visits and then demonstrations.  At this point in time, 
Administration does not anticipate being done evaluating the vendors before the 
proposals expire.  Therefore, KCCDA will most likely be asking for the vendors to extend 
90 days.     
 

o #3 – Multi-Factor Authentication (Budget: $20,000) 
This project is in the initial phases.  IT and Administration are discussing the pros and 
cons of the various options of multi-factor.   
 

o #4 – Dispatch Console Monitor Replacement (Budget: $30,000) 
COMPLETE - All dispatch console monitors have been installed/replaced. Project total - 
$17,253.   
 
 

Board Packet - Page #4



  
 2 | P a g e   

 

o #5 – Top of Rack and Network Switches (Budget: $75,000) 
Trace3 was selected as the vendor for the Top of Rack and Network switches project 
totaling $41,899.  All switches have arrived on site and Network and Systems 
Administrator Moored had a project kick-off meeting with Trace3.  We anticipate this 
project to be complete around late March or early April.        
 

o #6 – Back-up Center Improvements (Budget: Arch/Reno-$250,000 & Equip/Software-$75,000) 
Administration continues to work with City of Portage on the shared/joint space.  
Estimated square footage required by KCCDA was sent to Chief Operating Officer 
Herringa in January.  On February 22nd, Herringa advised that Portage DPW finished 
their square footage assessment, and it looks good for a backup dispatch center to be 
located at the facility.  We are working on an arrangement to move forward.  
  

o #7 – Primary PSAP Electric/Lighting Upgrades (Budget: $30,000) 
Administration is working with KCCDA’s electrical contractor – Hi-Tech – on this project.  
Two additional outdoor lights were added to the project and all other updated fixture 
pricing was received.  Administration issued the revised purchase order to Hi-Tech on 
February 16th totaling $16,200.  Installation of the PSAP Electrical/Lighting Upgrades has 
not been scheduled yet.   

  
• WEBSITE REDESIGN AND VIDEOS 

The website redesign and videos are complete.  The website went live on March 5th!  
Everything is ready for the first new hiring process which will open on March 6th.   

 
• PREPARED LIVE 

Administration is currently configuring and building out the Prepared Live system and 
developing SOP’s.  All staff will be trained on the system on March 12th during the All-Staff 
meetings and Dispatch Supervisors will receive additional training at the Supervisor Meeting 
on March 21st.  We anticipate a Go-Live with Prepared Live during the first few weeks of 
April.   

 
• MASS CASUALTY INCIDENT NATURE CODE 

KCCDA has been working with Medical Control and end user agencies over the last several 
months to develop a method/process to better manage mass casualty incidents (MCI).  The 
decision was made to develop an MCI nature code and begin building it out in the computer 
aided dispatch (CAD) system.  The first phase of the MCI nature code SOP was approved by 
TAC on January 10th and was implemented on the 16th.  KCCDA Systems Support Specialists 
Ftacek and Johnson started the second phase of the build-out, but at the January 18th MCI 
Workgroup meeting, Dr. Fales requested KCCDA to stop building fire run cards for the 
nature code until he has an opportunity to discuss a standard response with the larger fire 
agencies.  KCCDA agreed to stop the build-out, but noted the previously agreed upon 
timeline (end of first quarter) would not be able to be met.  At this point, the second phase 
of the build-out has been halted.  At the February 15th MCI Workgroup meeting, the fire run 

Board Packet - Page #5



  
 3 | P a g e   

 

cards for the MCI nature code were discussed again and KCCDA will be moving forward.  
System Support Specialists Ftacek and Johnson will resume reaching out to the fire 
agencies.   

   
• KCCDA STAFFING 

The following is a snapshot of KCCDA staffing levels as of March 5th, 2024:   
 

POSITION/TITLE 
POSITIONS 
Budgeted 

POSITIONS 
Filled NOTES 

ECO – I 12 9   
ECO – II 36 24   
PT ECO’s 7 8  

Dispatch Supervisor 6 6  
TOTAL: 61 47  

  
The three PT temporary/pool employees were offered the regular PT positions and all three 
accepted.  They transitioned to their regular PT roles on March 3rd.  We will begin accepting 
applications again for full-time ECO I’s and II’s on March 6th.   

       
• CJIS/LEIN AUDIT 

Deputy Director Rose and Network and Systems Administrator Moored met with MSP’s 
Criminal Justice Information System (CJIS) Compliance Audit team on Tuesday, February 13th 
at 1:00 p.m.  We had to update our security incident reporting policy and modify our hit 
confirmation policy.  Both documents were updated and resubmitted and accepted by the 
Audit team.   
 

• 2023 FINANCIAL AUDIT 
Administration has completed the pre-audit documentation gathering and report 
generating.  All information requested was uploaded to Kruggel Lawton’s portal on Tuesday, 
February 6th.  Administration updated the Trial Balance sheet on Thursday, February 29th 
after all expenditures and revenues for 2023 were closed.  Kruggel Lawton’s audit team is 
scheduled to be on-site Monday, March 11th.    

 
• MONTH END FINANCIALS 

The Michigan Class investment account was reconciled with the general ledger on March 5th 
and the Mercantile General Business checking on March 6th.   

 
• STATISTICS & METRICS 

Attached are several different statistical and performance metrics reports: 
 Monthly Accolades, Complaints and Suggestions 
 Weekly Workload Graphs 
 2024 and 2023 Monthly workload statistics 
 Emergency Call Wait Time Report 

Board Packet - Page #6



Date Related Received Incident Date of Chief Investigative KCCDA
Recvd Dept From Number Incident Accolade, Complaint or Suggestion Results Actions (if any)

2/15/2024 KDPS Citizen CFS 245 2/15/2024
Citizen called in to report hazards in the roadway.  Citizen was upset a 
person from dispatch told her "you are under no obligation to protect 
people from hitting it."   The citizen felt the dispatcher was uncaring.

Citizen had put her hazard lights on and was parked in 
the roadway to avert someone else from hitting the 
objects in the roadway.  After hearing that, the call taker 
told her "you are under no obligation to protect people 
from hitting it." The call taker was looking out for the 
citizen's safety but used a poor choice in words to 
explain that.

DD Rose contacted the citizen back and 
explained the situation.  The citizen was 
very understanding and agreed the 
wording could have been different.  
The dispatcher supervisor was directed 
to have a conversation with the call 
taker regarding their choice of wording. 

February 2024 - Accolades, Complaints and Suggestions

Board Packet - Page #7



0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

Wk of
DEC 11

Wk of
DEC 18

Wk of
DEC 25

Wk of
JAN 1

Wk of
JAN 8

Wk of
JAN 15

Wk of
JAN 22

Wk of
JAN 29

Wk of
FEB 5

Wk of
FEB 12

Wk of
FEB 19

Wk of
FEB 26

KCCDA - Weekly Workload Analysis

Law Calls for Service Fire Calls for Service 911 CALLS NON-EMERGENCY CALLS

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

Wk of
DEC 11

Wk of
DEC 18

Wk of
DEC 25

Wk of
JAN 1

Wk of
JAN 8

Wk of
JAN 15

Wk of
JAN 22

Wk of
JAN 29

Wk of
FEB 5

Wk of
FEB 12

Wk of
FEB 19

Wk of
FEB 26

KCCDA - Weekly Inbound Telephone Calls

911 CALLS NON-EMERGENCY CALLS

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

Wk of
DEC 11

Wk of
DEC 18

Wk of
DEC 25

Wk of
JAN 1

Wk of
JAN 8

Wk of
JAN 15

Wk of
JAN 22

Wk of
JAN 29

Wk of
FEB 5

Wk of
FEB 12

Wk of
FEB 19

Wk of
FEB 26

KCCDA - Weekly LE Radio Transmission Counts

LAW 1 (KDPS) LAW 2 (MSP, KCSO & Village PD's) LAW 3 (TKPD, WMUPD & PDPS) LEIN

Board Packet - Page #8



250

300

350

400

450

Wk of
DEC 11

Wk of
DEC 18

Wk of
DEC 25

Wk of
JAN 1

Wk of
JAN 8

Wk of
JAN 15

Wk of
JAN 22

Wk of
JAN 29

Wk of
FEB 5

Wk of
FEB 12

Wk of
FEB 19

Wk of
FEB 26

KCCDA - Weekly FIRE CAD Calls for Service

METRO FIRE COUNTY FIRE

800

1,100

1,400

1,700

2,000

2,300

2,600

Wk of
DEC 11

Wk of
DEC 18

Wk of
DEC 25

Wk of
JAN 1

Wk of
JAN 8

Wk of
JAN 15

Wk of
JAN 22

Wk of
JAN 29

Wk of
FEB 5

Wk of
FEB 12

Wk of
FEB 19

Wk of
FEB 26

KCCDA - Weekly LE CAD Calls for Service

LAW 1 (KDPS) LAW 2 (MSP, KCSO & Village PD's) LAW 3 (TKPD, WMUPD & PDPS)

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

Wk of
DEC 11

Wk of
DEC 18

Wk of
DEC 25

Wk of
JAN 1

Wk of
JAN 8

Wk of
JAN 15

Wk of
JAN 22

Wk of
JAN 29

Wk of
FEB 5

Wk of
FEB 12

Wk of
FEB 19

Wk of
FEB 26

KCCDA - Weekly Fire Radio Transmission Counts

METRO FIRE COUNTY FIRE

Board Packet - Page #9



JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC YTD TOTAL
Primary Dispatch:

LAW 1 73,288 75,661 148,949
LAW 2 49,179 45,252 94,431
LAW 3 47,151 51,462 98,613
METRO FIRE  29,369 27,038 56,407
COUNTY FIRE 30,135 24,413 54,548
LEIN  16,486 19,927 36,413

Tactical Channels:
800-TAC 1 8,042 9,265 17,307
800-TAC 2 1,034 621 1,655
800-TAC 3 1,215 1,571 2,786
800-TAC 4 186 1350 1,536
800-TAC 5 3,330 3,086 6,416
800-TAC 6 285 179 464
800-TAC 7 3 1 4
800-TAC 8 86 6 92

TOTAL: 259,789 259,832 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 519,621
Compared to 2023: -2.09% -3.56%

PHONE CALLS JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL
911 CALLS 11,786 10,943 22,729
NON-EMERGENCY 21,953 19,933 41,886

 
TOTAL: 33,739 30,876 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 64,615

Compared to 2023: -4.40% -15.21%

DISPATCH POSITION: JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL
LAW 1 9,554 9,576 19,130
LAW 2 4,854 5,046 9,900
LAW 3 5,398 5,847 11,245
METRO FIRE  1,331 1,191 2,522
COUNTY FIRE 1,498 1,265 2,763

 
TOTAL: 22,635 22,925 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 45,560

Compared to 2023: -2.90% -5.67%

2024 ALL RADIO TRANSMISSIONS
(Includes Dispatch to Field Units, Field Unit to Dispatch, and Field Unit to Field Unit)

2024 TELEPHONE CALLS

2024 CAD CALLS FOR SERVICE 
(Does not include canceled calls)

Board Packet - Page #10



JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC YTD TOTAL
Primary Dispatch:

LAW 1 78,060 77,005 78,928 83,364 81,574 75,316 82,935 82,670 79,506 82,850 73,744 78,250 954,202
LAW 2 46,053 44,784 44,821 45,054 48,859 49,168 54,824 50,381 48,893 49,714 45,781 49,046 577,378
LAW 3 62,826 55,292 52,252 52,421 57,348 50,581 55,262 54,195 55,881 58,385 46,766 50,349 651,558
METRO FIRE  25,117 31,539 25,635 25,267 28,982 26,389 29,475 27,653 27,359 27,805 25,949 27,150 328,320
COUNTY FIRE 25,787 35,097 24,633 23,800 28,120 27,248 29,863 27,833 24,846 24,547 27,060 25,282 324,116
LEIN  18,707 17,654 18,161 19,318 20,276 20,180 21,104 20,209 20,488 18,631 17,389 20,328 232,445

Tactical Channels:
800-TAC 1 6,729 4,692 4,169 6,148 6,207 5,271 5,692 5,415 5,171 4,257 4,128 5,063 62,942
800-TAC 2 923 435 753 683 572 901 2,098 831 733 861 370 1,303 10,463
800-TAC 3 339 1,764 1,537 1,249 1,063 1,596 2,795 1,203 1,010 1,468 1,242 1,471 16,737
800-TAC 4 144 236 50 443 634 412 134 309 375 463 242 292 3,734
800-TAC 5 348 480 805 473 1,421 500 1,162 1,107 1,176 1,436 697 1,185 10,790
800-TAC 6 108 111 200 306 106 168 122 281 374 110 343 242 2,471
800-TAC 7 1 5 0 0 4 0 265 50 24 3 23 1 376
800-TAC 8 77 0 10 3 0 1 4 2 3 1 1 0 102

TOTAL: 265,219 269,094 251,954 258,529 275,166 257,731 285,735 272,139 265,839 270,531 243,735 259,962 3,175,634
Compared to 2022: -4.13% 0.74% -12.27% -7.26% -13.71% -13.57% -11.98% -18.40% -14.91% -10.08% -11.93% -3.02%

PHONE CALLS JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL
911 CALLS 12,789 14,238 13,566 14,899 16,431 16,445 15,235 14,063 13,420 13,247 11,655 12,119 168,107
NON-EMERGENCY 22,436 21,335 22,775 24,073 26,849 26,751 26,193 24,187 22,758 23,288 20,687 20,900 282,232

TOTAL: 35,225 35,573 36,341 38,972 43,280 43,196 41,428 38,250 36,178 36,535 32,342 33,019 450,339
Compared to 2022: 1.94% 9.43% 1.60% 10.24% 7.42% 9.71% 3.71% -10.10% -8.07% -2.45% -9.17% -8.24%

DISPATCH POSITION: JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL
LAW 1 9,819 10,258 10,122 10,106 10,695 10,394 10,694 10,283 10,258 10,029 9,742 9,895 122,295
LAW 2 4,963 4,868 4,899 5,055 5,649 5,230 5,296 5,113 5,415 5,228 4,961 5,018 61,695
LAW 3 6,030 5,889 5,833 6,106 6,379 6,035 6,002 5,954 6,188 6,089 5,400 5,752 71,657
METRO FIRE  1,172 1,497 1,197 1,180 1,361 1,296 1,327 1,268 1,322 1,286 1,245 1,300 15,451
COUNTY FIRE 1,308 1,713 1,159 1,218 1,342 1,365 1,426 1,402 1,344 1,324 1,393 1,359 16,353

 
TOTAL: 23,292 24,225 23,210 23,665 25,426 24,320 24,745 24,020 24,527 23,956 22,741 23,324 287,451

Compared to 2022: 3.82% 11.09% -1.84% -0.09% 0.04% 0.92% -2.80% -2.46% 1.55% -2.30% -1.63% -0.76%

2023 ALL RADIO TRANSMISSIONS
(Includes Dispatch to Field Units, Field Unit to Dispatch, and Field Unit to Field Unit)

2023 TELEPHONE CALLS

2023 CAD CALLS FOR SERVICE 
(Does not include canceled calls)

Board Packet - Page #11



Board Packet - Page #12



Board Packet - Page #13



Board Packet - Page #14



Board Packet - Page #15



Board Packet - Page #16



Board Packet - Page #17



Board Packet - Page #18



Board Packet - Page #19



Board Packet - Page #20



Board Packet - Page #21



Board Packet - Page #22



Board Packet - Page #23



Board Packet - Page #24



Board Packet - Page #25



Board Packet - Page #26



Board Packet - Page #27



 

 
 

 
Kalamazoo County Dispatch Authority     January 23, 2024 
 ATTN: Jeff Troyer 
7040 Stadium Drive  
Kalamazoo, MI 49009 

 
Subject: Over Capture of RAI Jets Summer and Winter 2022 TIR Return of Local Taxes 
 
Dear Mr. Troyer,  
 
As you may be aware, the RAI Jets development project located at 5825 and 5901 Willoughby 
Drive Portage, Michigan, has been incentivized through a Brownfield Plan, managed by the 
Kalamazoo County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (KCBRA). This Plan captures tax 
increment revenue (TIR) created by new investment on real and personal property. As of the 
2022 Tax Season, the KCBRA has completed capture on the Brownfield Plan for this project. Upon 
review of the plan, after the reimbursements to developers and the KCBRA, the KCBRA will need 
to return any remaining funds to the appropriate taxing jurisdictions. The amount to be returned 
to each organization is based off the organization’s percentage, in relation to how much they 
contributed to the total 2022 TIR received for the project. The amount to be returned to you is 
calculated by subtracting that percentage from the over capture amount.  
 
The RAI Jets Brownfield Plan captured taxes from one (1) millage associated with your 
organization. A check in the amount of $161.45 will be mailed separately from this letter, to be 
returned to Kalamazoo County Dispatch Authority.   
 
2022 Tax Capture to be return to Kalamazoo County Dispatch Authority 

$161.45 from County 911  
 
 
Upon your review, if you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact our office.  
 
 
Sincerely,  
 

Macy Rose Walters, MPA 

Brownfield Redevelopment Administrator  
Kalamazoo County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Planning & Development Department 
mrwalt@kalcounty.com 
Voicemail: (269) 384-8305  

Board Packet - Page #28

mailto:mrwalt@kalcounty.com


KALAMAZOO COUNTY CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH AUTHORITY 

Agenda Request Form 

Please fill in the boxes below with the appropriate information. 

 Agency: 

Length of Time Needed:  Agenda Item #: 

Topic: 

Brief Description: 

Proposed Motion: 

Agenda Request Approved: Meeting Date: Time: 

Persons or items will not be placed on a meeting agenda without an agenda request form first being completed.   The 
agenda request form must be accompanied by information that substantiates and justifies your request.  Lack of this 
information may cause a delay in your request being acted upon by the Board of Directors.   Agenda requests must be 
received by 9:00 a.m. on Monday of the week preceding the monthly meeting date.  Completed forms should be 
delivered to an Officer of the Board of Directors or sent electronically to admin@kccda911.org.  If you have any questions 
regarding this form, please feel free to contact KCCDA’s administrative office at (269) 488-8911.   

KCCDA Name: Executive Committee 

Phone Number:   

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 

The attached meeting minutes are presented to the Board for informational purposes, no action 
necessary.   

No action 

5B-1a

Board Packet - Page #29



MEETING MINUTES for 
Kalamazoo County Consolidated Dispatch Authority 

                   EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
                    January 9, 2024 

 

ITEM 1 – CALL TO ORDER 

The Regular Meeting of the Executive Committee, held in the Chief Switalski Meeting Room at KCCDA was 
called to order by Jan VanDerKley at 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, January 9, 2024. 

ITEM 2 – ROLL CALL 

Members Present:   Jan VanDerKley, Jim Ritsema, Rick Fuller  

Others Present:   Jeff Troyer, Torie Rose, Chris McComb 

ITEM 3 – APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

A. Meeting Minutes from November 7, 2023 

“Motion by Mr. Fuller, second by Mr. Ritsema to approve the meeting minutes from November 
7, 2023, as presented.” 

On a voice vote, MOTION CARRIED. 

ITEM 4 – CITIZENS’ TIME 

There was none. 

ITEM 5 – FOR CONSIDERATION 

A. Old Business 

1.  UPDATE – Backup Facility Search 

Mr. Troyer stated Portage COO Adam Herringa is getting ready to release the RFP for an 
architect/feasibility study for the building. Mr. Troyer will be meeting with him in the next couple of 
weeks to follow up.  

        2. UPDATE – Conditional Bonds and Orders 

Mr. Troyer stated that he reached out to County Administrator Catlin for an update. A deputy court 
administrator position is being created and one of their duties will be migrating the duties of orders and 
conditions. It is our understanding from Administrator Catlin, that district court will handle both circuit 
and district entries. There are still a lot of unanswered questions.  

      3.  UPDATE – WMUK Tower Request 

Mr. Troyer stated he had nothing new to report. He stated WMUK is working with their consultant on 
antenna design.  A�er that is complete, the required studies can be done. 

 

Board Packet - Page #30



 

 

 

 
B. New Business 

1.  Draft Board Agenda for January 11 

Mr. Troyer reviewed the Dra� Board Agenda for the January 11 mee�ng. He noted there would be an 
elec�on of officers and the normal reports. The Personnel Commitee is working on scheduling a 
February mee�ng and the Dependent Care Assistance Program will be on their agenda. The Finance 
Commitee does not have a mee�ng scheduled un�l April. TAC is scheduled to meet tomorrow. The 
Michigan Local Cybersecurity Grant consent agreement will be on the agenda for approval.  

ITEM 6 – OTHER ITEMS 

A. Announcements and Member Comments 

Mr. Troyer stated staff have not sat down and gone through the dispatch piece of the CAD RFP yet. He 
noted the proposals came in about 40% higher than expected.  

B. Next Meeting – March 14, 2024, at 4:00 p.m. 

ITEM 7 – ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 4:20 p.m. 

Board Packet - Page #31



KALAMAZOO COUNTY CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH AUTHORITY 

Agenda Request Form 

Please fill in the boxes below with the appropriate information. 

 Agency: 

Length of Time Needed:  Agenda Item #: 

Proposed Motion: 

Agenda Request Approved: Meeting Date: Time: 

Persons or items will not be placed on a meeting agenda without an agenda request form first being completed.   The 
agenda request form must be accompanied by information that substantiates and justifies your request.  Lack of this 
information may cause a delay in your request being acted upon by the Board of Directors.   Agenda requests must be 
received by 9:00 a.m. on Monday of the week preceding the monthly meeting date.  Completed forms should be 
delivered to an Officer of the Board of Directors or sent electronically to admin@kccda911.org.  If you have any questions 
regarding this form, please feel free to contact KCCDA’s administrative office at (269) 488-8911.   

KCCDA Name: Personnel Committee 

Phone Number:   

Topic: Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes 

Brief Description: 

The attached meeting minutes are presented to the Board for informational purposes, no action 
necessary.   

No action 

Multiple Multiple 

5B-2a

Board Packet - Page #32



 
 

Personnel Committee 
February 16, 2024 

11:00 a.m. 
 

 
ITEM 1 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Personnel Committee Meeting was called to order at 11:00 a.m. by Personnel Committee Chairperson 
Pat McGinnis in the Chief Switalski Meeting Room, Kalamazoo County Consolidated Dispatch Authority, 
7040 Stadium Drive, Kalamazoo, Michigan on Friday, February 16, 2024. 

ITEM 2 – ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present:  Pat McGinnis, Portage City Manager; Scott Merlo, Chief, Western Michigan University; 
Jeff Heppler, Kalamazoo County Board of Commissioners; Rick Fuller, Sheriff, Kalamazoo County; Jeff 
Chamberlain, City of Kalamazoo; Don Martin, Township Supervisor, Kalamazoo Township 
 
Others Present:   Jeff Troyer, Executive Director; Torie Rose, Deputy Director; Chris McComb, Executive 
Administrative Assistant 
  
ITEM 3 – APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
 

A. March 7, 2023 – Regular Meeting 
 

“Motion by Mr. Merlo, second by Mr. Heppler to approve the March 7, 2023, Regular 
Meeting minutes as presented.” 

 
On a voice vote, MOTION CARRIED. 
 
ITEM 4 - CITIZENS’ TIME 
  
There was no citizen comment. 
 
ITEM 5 – FOR CONSIDERATION 
  

A. Old Business 
 

There was none. 

 

 

Board Packet - Page #33



B. New Business 
 
1. Hiring Process Assessment Tool 

 
a. February 2023 
b. July 2023 
c. November 2023 

 
Mr. Troyer stated the assessment tool is part of the recruitment strategy and presented for 
informational purposes. 

2. NEW Personnel Policy 3.18 – Dependent Care Assistance Program 

Mr. Troyer presented the new Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP) Policy, no�ng that the Board 
approved the alloca�on for development and implementa�on of the plan. The alloca�on is subject to 
the annual budget review. He noted that Agenda Items 2 through 5 were all related to the DCAP, and he 
recommend approval for all. 

3. MI Tri-Share Memorandum of Understanding with Southwest Childcare Resources 

Mr. Troyer stated the MOU has been reviewed and approved by legal counsel. It is a standard MOU; 
s�pulates we will enter the Tri-Share Program and details our responsibili�es as well as Southwest 
Childcare Resources’ responsibili�es. If approved by the Board, the projected start date is April 1.  

4. Dependent Care Assistance Program Administrative Guidelines 

Mr. Troyer presented the Administra�ve Guidelines for Dependent Care Assistance Program, no�ng this 
is the “nuts and bolts” of how we plan to administer the program. He explained that KCCDA will be the 
first employer that has an employer reimbursement to aid employees that don’t qualify for TriShare. The 
plan is restricted to full �me employees with children 0 – 13 years. Employees will be required to submit 
an applica�on to the TriShare program because they will vet all employees, whether they meet the 
income requirements or not. There is an op�on to share the applica�on informa�on with the employer 
and employees cannot qualify for the Authority program without checking that box. KCCDA will 
reimburse one-third of the cost for either program.  

 
5. Letter of Understanding with UAW – Dependent Care Assistance Program 

Mr. Troyer stated the Leter of Understanding with the UAW allows us to offer the DCAP program to 
bargaining unit employees and has been reviewed and approved by legal. The understanding is that as 
the employer, we control the DCAP and can change or terminate it at any �me. 

 

 

 

 

Board Packet - Page #34



“Motion by Mr. Fuller, second by Mr. Heppler to approve and recommend Board 
approval of the NEW Personnel Policy 3.18 – Dependent Care Assistance Program, the 
MI Tri-Share Memorandum of Understanding with Southwest Childcare Resources, the 
Dependent Care Assistance Program Administrative Guidelines and the Letter of 
Understanding with the UAW as presented.” 

On a voice vote, MOTION CARRIED. 

6. Executive Director 2023 Performance Appraisal 

Mr. Troyer presented the performance appraisal scoring sheet and information on how the appraisal 
had been completed in past years.  

Mr. McGinnis stated he would like everyone to complete the appraisal and send it to Ms. McComb to 
compile. She will send the compiled scores to Mr. McGinnis, and he will meet with Mr. Troyer to review. 

7. 2024 Executive Director Performance Objectives 

Mr. Troyer presented a review of his 2024 goals and performance objectives. He stated the Authority 
was working on a website redesign as well as recruitment emails/videos. He noted that KCCDA will be 
the first 911 center to have a DCAP and the first to do recruiting videos. 

ITEM 6 – OTHER ITEMS 

A. Announcements and Member Comments 

There were none. 

B. Next Meeting 

The next meeting is to be determined. 

ITEM 7 - ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:00 a.m. 

Board Packet - Page #35



 

KALAMAZOO COUNTY CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH AUTHORITY 
 

Agenda Request Form 
 
 

Please fill in the boxes below with the appropriate information. 
 
Name:                Agency:  
 
Phone Number:  Length of Time Needed:        Agenda Item #: 
 
Topic: 
 
Brief Description:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Motion: 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Request Approved: Meeting Date:   Time: 
 
Persons or items will not be placed on a meeting agenda without an agenda request form first being completed.   The 
agenda request form must be accompanied by information that substantiates and justifies your request.  Lack of this 
information may cause a delay in your request being acted upon by the Board of Directors.   Agenda requests must be 
received by 9:00 a.m. on Monday of the week preceding the monthly meeting date.  Completed forms should be 
delivered to an Officer of the Board of Directors or sent electronically to admin@kccda911.org.  If you have any questions 
regarding this form, please feel free to contact KCCDA’s administrative office at (269) 488-8911.   

Personnel Committee    
     

KCCDA 

 2 mins 

NEW Personnel Policy 3.18 – Dependent Care Assistance Program 

Personnel Policy 3.18 allows KCCDA to develop plan documents/administrative guidelines to administer a 
Dependent Care Assistance Program.  The policy has been reviewed and is approved to form by legal 
counsel.    
 
The Personnel Committee unanimously approved personnel policy 3.18 and recommends the Board of 
the Directors approve.   

Motion to approve new Personnel Policy 3.18 – Dependent Care Assistance Program    

2/16/24 3/14/24 
 

 
 

   

 

5B-2b
  

Board Packet - Page #36

mailto:admin@kccda911.org


NEW 

Sec�on 3.18.  Dependent Care Assistance Program 

The Authority currently sponsors a Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP) for eligible 
regular full-�me employees.  The DCAP is a voluntary benefit intended to assist eligible 
employees with the cost associated with licensed dependent care and aid in atrac�veness and 
employee reten�on.   

The program is described in detail in the administra�ve guidelines, which is available from the 
Execu�ve Director’s Office.   The terms of the administra�ve guidelines control the benefits 
provided thereunder and the employee’s eligibility for benefits.  The Authority reserves and 
retains the unilateral right to amend or terminate this program.  In the event of any conflict 
between this summary and the administra�ve guidelines, the administra�ve guidelines control.    

Board Packet - Page #37



 

KALAMAZOO COUNTY CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH AUTHORITY 
 

Agenda Request Form 
 
 

Please fill in the boxes below with the appropriate information. 
 
Name:                Agency:  
 
Phone Number:  Length of Time Needed:        Agenda Item #: 
 
Topic: 
 
Brief Description:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Motion: 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Request Approved: Meeting Date:   Time: 
 
Persons or items will not be placed on a meeting agenda without an agenda request form first being completed.   The 
agenda request form must be accompanied by information that substantiates and justifies your request.  Lack of this 
information may cause a delay in your request being acted upon by the Board of Directors.   Agenda requests must be 
received by 9:00 a.m. on Monday of the week preceding the monthly meeting date.  Completed forms should be 
delivered to an Officer of the Board of Directors or sent electronically to admin@kccda911.org.  If you have any questions 
regarding this form, please feel free to contact KCCDA’s administrative office at (269) 488-8911.   

Personnel Committee    
     

KCCDA 

 2 mins 

Michigan Tri-Share MOU with Southwest Child Care Resources 

The Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Southwest Child Care Resources allows KCCDA (as an 
employer) to participate in the Michigan Tri-Share Program.  Southwest Child Care Resources is the State 
of Michigan’s third party administrator for the Tri-Share program.  The MOU details responsibilities of 
KCCDA and Southwest Child Care Resources and has an effective date of April 1st.  The MOU has been 
reviewed and approved by legal counsel.   
 
The Personnel Committee unanimously approved the MOU and recommends the Board of the Directors 
approve.   

Motion to approve the Memorandum of Understanding with Southwest Child Care Resources allowing 
KCCDA to participate in the Michigan Tri-Share Program, and authorize the Executive Director to execute.   

2/16/24 3/14/24 
 

 
 

   

 

5B-2c
  

Board Packet - Page #38

mailto:admin@kccda911.org


                                Southwest Child Care Resources 
   

 1 
  
 

 
 

Memorandum of Understanding 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) sets forth the terms and understanding between Southwest 
Child Care Resources (CCR) and _______________________________________ (“Employer”) to participate 
in the funding for the Tri-Share childcare program offered by the State of Michigan through the Michigan 
Women’s Commission (“Tri-Share Program”). 
 
Section 1. Background  
The overall purpose of the Tri-Share Program is to improve access to affordable quality childcare. This is done 
through implementing a model in which the state, the employer, and the employee can share equal 
responsibility for childcare by contributing one-third of the total cost to be paid to a licensed Child Care 
Operator. In Kalamazoo County, the program is being administered by Southwest Child Care Resources 
(CCR).  The purpose of this MOU is to provide the terms of responsibility of the Employer and CCR in 
executing the Tri-Share Program in Kalamazoo County. 
 
 
Section 2. Eligibility 

The Employer acknowledges and agrees to the following conditions required by the State of Michigan for Tri-
Share Program eligibility: 

A. The Employer has offices in Kalamazoo County.  
B. The Employer potentially has one or more employees with household income between 200 and 325% 

of the Federal Poverty Level relative to the number of individuals in the household. Participating 
employees cannot be eligible for the Child Development and Care Program (commonly called the 
childcare subsidy). Participating employees must have one or more dependent children between 0 and 
13 years old who require childcare. 

 

Section 3. Responsibilities of Southwest Child Care Resources 

CCR acknowledges and agrees to the following responsibilities related to the Tri-Share Program: 
A. Serve as the “facilitator hub” for the Tri-Share Program. 
B. Maintain fiscal management. 
C. Collection of childcare payment 

o State portion  
o Employer portion 

D. Submit payment to the Child Care Provider. 

E. Provide families with necessary assistance finding childcare that meets their needs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kalamazoo County Consolidated Dispatch Authority

Board Packet - Page #39



                                Southwest Child Care Resources 
   

 2 
  
 

 
 

Section 4: Responsibilities of the Employer 

The Employer acknowledges and agrees to the following responsibilities related to the Tri-Share Program: 
 

A. Allow employees to choose the licensed childcare provider that best meets their needs. 
B. Provide ⅓ of the childcare costs for the employee participating in the Tri-Share Program and transfer 

payment promptly in the manner requested by CCR. 
C. Report to CCR within 1 week when an employee is no longer using a childcare slot, due to ineligibility 

or other causes.  
 

Section 5: Other Terms.  

A. Duration.  This MOU is in effect beginning _____________ 

 

B. Termination.  Either party may terminate this MOU at any time, without penalty, with 60 days written 
notice to the other party; however, any outstanding obligations for payment that occur prior to the date 
of termination will survive termination. 

   
C. Limited Southwest Child Care Resources Role.  Employer acknowledges that CCR is a fiduciary 

hub collecting funds from the State of Michigan and the Employer for transfer to the Child Care Provider 
and assumes only the obligations specifically described herein.  CCR is not assuming responsibility for 
any expense, liability, claim, or risk, with regard to the Employer or its employees, the Child Care 
Provider, or any other parties outside of its limited fiduciary role.  In the event the State of Michigan or 
the Employer fails to provide funding as required in this MOU, CCR is not obligated to pay the Child 
Care Provider to fill the gap in the cost of services.  Employer remains fully responsible for all other 
expenses, and legal and other obligations with regard to its employees. 

 

D. Binding Effect.  This Letter shall be deemed binding upon the parties and an intent to work together in 
good faith to further the goals of the Tri-Share Program.  

  
E. Miscellaneous.  This MOU may be modified only by a written agreement signed by both parties. This 

Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan, and the parties’ consent to personal 
jurisdiction and venue in Kalamazoo County in connection with any action between the parties arising 
out of this MOU and the Tri-Share Program.  All the provisions of this MOU shall be binding upon and 
inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, and assigns, if any. The 
Effective Date of this agreement is the date that both parties sign this MOU.  Each party is authorized to 
enter into this MOU on behalf of its organization. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 1, 2024

Board Packet - Page #40



                                Southwest Child Care Resources 
   

 3 
  
 

 
 
We, the undersigned, agree to the provisions identified in this MOU and acknowledge that we are satisfied with 
the scope of the project as outlined. 
 
 
The Employer 
 
 
Employer’s Designee: ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Employer’s Signature: ___________________________________________Date: ______________________ 
 
 
Southwest Child Care Resources 
 
 
Executive Director Name: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Executive Director Signature: _____________________________________Date: ______________________ 

Jeffery Troyer, KCCDA Executive Director

March 14, 2024

Board Packet - Page #41



 

KALAMAZOO COUNTY CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH AUTHORITY 
 

Agenda Request Form 
 
 

Please fill in the boxes below with the appropriate information. 
 
Name:                Agency:  
 
Phone Number:  Length of Time Needed:        Agenda Item #: 
 
Topic: 
 
Brief Description:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Motion: 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Request Approved: Meeting Date:   Time: 
 
Persons or items will not be placed on a meeting agenda without an agenda request form first being completed.   The 
agenda request form must be accompanied by information that substantiates and justifies your request.  Lack of this 
information may cause a delay in your request being acted upon by the Board of Directors.   Agenda requests must be 
received by 9:00 a.m. on Monday of the week preceding the monthly meeting date.  Completed forms should be 
delivered to an Officer of the Board of Directors or sent electronically to admin@kccda911.org.  If you have any questions 
regarding this form, please feel free to contact KCCDA’s administrative office at (269) 488-8911.   

Personnel Committee    
     

KCCDA 

 2 mins 

Dependent Care Assistance Program Administrative Guidelines 

The Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP) Administrative Guidelines detail specifics as to how 
KCCDA will administer the DCAP program, including both program levels of funding.  The administrative 
guidelines have been reviewed and approved by legal counsel.   
 
The Personnel Committee unanimously approved the administrative guidelines and recommends the 
Board of the Directors approve.   

Motion to approve the Dependent Care Assistance Program Administrative Guidelines.   

2/16/24 3/14/24 
 

 
 

   

 

5B-2d
  

Board Packet - Page #42

mailto:admin@kccda911.org


 
 

 
Governmental collaborative to create an efficient and non-duplicative way of providing cost effective and efficient response to 

public safety emergency services, including the dispatch of emergency police, fire, and medical services within Kalamazoo County. 
 

Kalamazoo County 
Consolidated Dispatch Authority  

 
 
 

DATE:   

 
 
 
March 14, 2024  

  
FROM: Jeff Troyer, Executive Director 

 Executive Director 
  

SUBJECT:  ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINE 
Dependent Care Assistance Program 

 

 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Administrative Guideline is to establish criteria and processes for administering a 
Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP) for eligible regular full-time employees.  The DCAP is a 
voluntary benefit program intended to assist eligible employees with the rising costs associated with 
licensed dependent care and aid in position attractiveness and employee retention.  The program is 
subject to annual budgetary funding by the KCCDA Board of Directors. 
 
GUIDELINE 
The KCCDA DCAP is offered to the following regular full-time employees with respective dependents 
ages zero (0) through twelve (12) years old: 

• Bargaining unit staff if a letter of understanding exists between the bargaining unit and 
KCCDA. 

• Non-union staff 
 
KCCDA’s DCAP consists of two different levels of aid:  
 

Michigan Tri-Share Child Care Program 
KCCDA is a participating employer in Michigan’s Tri-Share Child Care Program (“Tri-Share”).  
Through Tri-Share, the cost of licensed dependent care is shared equally among the employer, 
employee, and the State of Michigan.  The employee’s household income must be between 200 
and 325% of the Federal Poverty Level relative to the number of individuals in the household.  All 
employees wanting to participate in the KCCDA’s DCAP, are required to apply (first) to the Tri-
Share Program online -  https://www.ccr4kids.org/trishare.  The employee must agree to allow 
Tri-Share to notify KCCDA of the application and share the results of the same.   
 
One-Third (1/3) Reimbursement 
If the employee’s application for Tri-Share assistance is denied/rejected solely based on the 
employee’s household income (all other the employee conditions are met according to Tri-Share 

Board Packet - Page #43

https://www.ccr4kids.org/trishare


 

Page 2 of 3 

– eligible dependent, qualifying licensed child care facility, etc.), the employee may still be eligible 
for the DCAP’s One-Third Reimbursement assistance.  Through this level, KCCDA shall reimburse 
the employee for one-third (1/3) of the cost of licensed dependent care for eligible dependents.  

 
DCAP Qualifying Level of Aid 
Full-time eligible employees wanting to participate in the DCAP shall complete the following steps to 
determine the level of aid the employee qualifies for: 
 

1. Employees must complete the online application for the Michigan Tri-Share Program.  This can 
be found on the Tri-Share Program website or by selecting the following link - 
https://www.ccr4kids.org/trishare.  Employees should expect to provide information 
pertaining to the following items: 

a. Name and Contact Information 
b. Employer 
c. Household Income Information 
d. Number of people in your household 
e. Age of dependents attending licensed day care  
f. Licensed Day Care Provider/Program Information 
g. QUESTION – If you do not qualify for Tri-Share due to income, is it okay to let your 

employer know?   ***Reference Step #3 below*** 
 

2. The Tri-Share Project Manager at Southwest Child Care Resources will review the employee 
application and approve or deny the application.   

a. If APPROVED, the Tri-Share Project Manager will notify KCCDA of the approval and 
advise the employee the next steps to continue with the Tri-Share Program.    

b. If DENIED, proceed to step 3.   
  

3. If the employee does not qualify for Tri-Share aid due to household income and the employee 
allows Tri-Share to share the application details with KCCDA, KCCDA will further evaluate the 
information for One-Third Reimbursement aid.   As with the Tri-Share application, this 
evaluation will include the employee providing proof of dependent(s), age criterion, and 
Licensed Day Care Provider/Program verification. Further, KCCDA may consider an otherwise 
ineligible employee’s tenure, attendance, and performance.  KCCDA Administration shall 
notify the employee in writing of approval or denial for the One-Third Reimbursement aid.   

 
DCAP Cost Share Payments 
The DCAP cost share payments are processed differently depending on the level of aid the employee 
is approved for.   
 

Michigan Tri-Share Child Care Program 
The Tri-Share program has three (3) payers who are responsible for one-third (1/3) of the cost 
equally:   

• Employee – the employee will pay the licensed day care provider/program directly for 1/3 
of the cost.  Employees participating in KCCDA Flex Spending Account for Dependent Care 

Board Packet - Page #44

https://www.ccr4kids.org/trishare


 

Page 3 of 3 

may also use their pre-taxed dollars to pay their portion.  Please reference your Plan 
documents for reimbursement procedure. 

• Employer – the Tri-Share facilitator will invoice KCCDA the first week of each month for 
the previous month’s care for the approved participants’ 1/3 cost share.  KCCDA will pay 
Tri-Share who acts as a pass-through for the individual licensed day care 
providers/programs. 

• Tri-Share (State of Michigan) – the Tri-Share facilitator will coordinate payment for the 
licensed day care provider/program for the State of Michigan’s 1/3 cost share.     

 
One-Third (1/3) Reimbursement 
The employee shall make full payment to the licensed day care provider/program and obtain a 
detailed invoice marked “paid”.  KCCDA will reimburse the employee for one-third (1/3) of their 
licensed day care cost.  The reimbursement process is as follows: 

• Employees are responsible for submitting an Expense/Reimbursement Voucher.   
• The Expense/Reimbursement Voucher must include supporting documentation consisting 

of detailed invoice(s) marked PAID from the licensed day care provider/program.   
• Each invoice submitted shall be listed as a separate line-item on the 

Expense/Reimbursement Voucher including the following information: 
o DESCRIPTION – List “DCAP” and the dates the dependent care invoice was for.  

Example:  DCAP 1/22/24 – 1/26/24. 
o OTHER – List the 1/3 amount of the invoice (the amount you are requesting be 

reimbursed) 
• The deadline to submit Expense/Reimbursement Vouchers under this program shall be 

3:00 p.m. on the second and fourth Monday of each month.  Vouchers submitted before 
the deadline(s) shall be reimbursed through the payroll system on the first payroll check 
date following deadline.  

• Licensed day care provider/program invoices are eligible for reimbursement from the date 
of invoice plus 90 days.   

 
SPECIAL NOTE:  Employer payments and reimbursements as part of this DCAP, shall be tracked 
separately in KCCDA’s payroll system and must be reported as taxable income not subject to 
retirement benefits and matching percentiles.   
 
Employees are encouraged to consult with tax professionals regarding this program and additional 
requirements and options for filing annual tax returns.  Employees may have the ability to exclude 
employer payments and reimbursements from federal income equal to the smallest of any of the 
following three income sources: (1) the employee’s earned income or the earned income of the 
lower-earning spouse if the employee is married, (2) dependent care benefits received, or (3) the 
statutory exclusion amount.   
 
The Tri-Share State of Michigan assistance amount is likely taxable unearned income for federal tax 
purposes and included in adjusted gross income (AGI) for state income tax purposes.   
 
 

Board Packet - Page #45



 

KALAMAZOO COUNTY CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH AUTHORITY 
 

Agenda Request Form 
 
 

Please fill in the boxes below with the appropriate information. 
 
Name:                Agency:  
 
Phone Number:  Length of Time Needed:        Agenda Item #: 
 
Topic: 
 
Brief Description:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Motion: 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Request Approved: Meeting Date:   Time: 
 
Persons or items will not be placed on a meeting agenda without an agenda request form first being completed.   The 
agenda request form must be accompanied by information that substantiates and justifies your request.  Lack of this 
information may cause a delay in your request being acted upon by the Board of Directors.   Agenda requests must be 
received by 9:00 a.m. on Monday of the week preceding the monthly meeting date.  Completed forms should be 
delivered to an Officer of the Board of Directors or sent electronically to admin@kccda911.org.  If you have any questions 
regarding this form, please feel free to contact KCCDA’s administrative office at (269) 488-8911.   

Personnel Committee    
     

KCCDA 

 2 mins 

Letter of Understanding with UAW – Dependent Care Assistance Program 

The Letter of Understanding (LOU) between KCCDA and the UAW will allow KCCDA to offer the 
Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP) to collective bargaining unit members who are eligible.   The 
LOU has been reviewed and approved to form by legal counsel.    
 
The Personnel Committee unanimously approved the LOU with UAW for the Dependent Care Assistance 
Program.     

Motion to approve the LOU with the UAW for the Dependent Care Assistance Program and authorize the 
Executive Director to execute.    

2/16/24 3/14/24 
 

 
 

   

 

5B-2e
  

Board Packet - Page #46

mailto:admin@kccda911.org


Board Packet - Page #47



 

KALAMAZOO COUNTY CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH AUTHORITY 
 

Agenda Request Form 
 
 

Please fill in the boxes below with the appropriate information. 
 
Name:                Agency:  
 
Phone Number:  Length of Time Needed:        Agenda Item #: 
 
Topic: 
 
Brief Description:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Motion: 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Request Approved: Meeting Date:   Time: 
 
Persons or items will not be placed on a meeting agenda without an agenda request form first being completed.   The 
agenda request form must be accompanied by information that substantiates and justifies your request.  Lack of this 
information may cause a delay in your request being acted upon by the Board of Directors.   Agenda requests must be 
received by 9:00 a.m. on Monday of the week preceding the monthly meeting date.  Completed forms should be 
delivered to an Officer of the Board of Directors or sent electronically to admin@kccda911.org.  If you have any questions 
regarding this form, please feel free to contact KCCDA’s administrative office at (269) 488-8911.   

Personnel Committee    
     

KCCDA 

 2 mins 

Executive Director 2023 Performance Appraisal 

The Personnel Committee completed the Executive Director’s performance appraisal for February of 2023 
through January of 2024 which is attached.   The Executive Director scored 4.2533 out of 5 equating to a 
categorical rating between  4-Exceeds Normal Job Expectations and 5-Far Exceeds Normal Job 
Expectations.   
 
 

Motion to receive the Executive Directors 2023 Performance Appraisal.    

2/16/24 3/14/24 
 

 
 

   

 

5B-2f
  

Board Packet - Page #48

mailto:admin@kccda911.org


Board Packet - Page #49



Board Packet - Page #50



Board Packet - Page #51



Board Packet - Page #52



 

KALAMAZOO COUNTY CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH AUTHORITY 
 

Agenda Request Form 
 
 

Please fill in the boxes below with the appropriate information. 
 
Name:                Agency:  
 
Phone Number:  Length of Time Needed:        Agenda Item #: 
 
Topic: 
 
Brief Description:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Motion: 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Request Approved: Meeting Date:   Time: 
 
Persons or items will not be placed on a meeting agenda without an agenda request form first being completed.   The 
agenda request form must be accompanied by information that substantiates and justifies your request.  Lack of this 
information may cause a delay in your request being acted upon by the Board of Directors.   Agenda requests must be 
received by 9:00 a.m. on Monday of the week preceding the monthly meeting date.  Completed forms should be 
delivered to an Officer of the Board of Directors or sent electronically to admin@kccda911.org.  If you have any questions 
regarding this form, please feel free to contact KCCDA’s administrative office at (269) 488-8911.   

Personnel Committee    
     

KCCDA 

 2 mins 

2024 Executive Director Performance Objectives 

The Executive Director proposed the attached performance objectives for 2024.  The Personnel 
Committee reviewed the objectives and unanimously approved them at the February 16th meeting.        
 
 

Motion to receive the Executive Director 2024 Performance Objectives as approved by the Personnel 
Committee. 

2/16/24 3/14/24 
 

 
 

   

 

5B-2g
  

Board Packet - Page #53

mailto:admin@kccda911.org


 

 
 

Governmental collaborative to create an efficient and non-duplicative way of providing cost effective and efficient response to 
public safety emergency services, including the dispatch of emergency police, fire, and medical services within Kalamazoo County. 

 

TO: Personnel Committee Members 
  

FROM: Jeff Troyer, Executive Director 
  

DATE: February 12, 2024 
  

SUBJECT: 2024 Executive Director Performance Goals/Objectives 
 

 
 
Please accept the following as recommended goals/performance objectives for February 2024 
through January 2025.  These performance objectives, if approved, will correspond to the 
Executive Director’s performance appraisal form that will be completed in February of 2025.   
 
GOAL/PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVE #1 
Continue to strategically recruit quality staff members and remain consistent or increase the 
overall number of positions filled to meet organizational needs.  This should include 
recommendations, if necessary, for recruitment and retention incentives. 
 
GOAL/PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVE #2 
Complete the proposal evaluation process and make recommendation(s) on KCCDA’s 
Computer Aided Dispatch and Mobile Computing System.  This should include a thorough 
vendor evaluation process with involvement from key stakeholders (dispatch staff, end-user 
agencies, Technical Advisory Committee, etc.).   
 
If you have any questions about the recommended goals above, please feel free to contact 
me at 269-718-2195 or via email at jtroyer@kccda911.org. 
 
 

Board Packet - Page #54

mailto:jtroyer@kccda911.org


KALAMAZOO COUNTY CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH AUTHORITY 

Agenda Request Form 

Please fill in the boxes below with the appropriate information. 

Name:  Agency: 

Phone Number:  Length of Time Needed:  Agenda Item #: 

Topic: 

Brief Description: 

Proposed Motion: 

Agenda Request Approved: Meeting Date: Time: 

Persons or items will not be placed on a meeting agenda without an agenda request form first being completed.   The 
agenda request form must be accompanied by information that substantiates and justifies your request.  Lack of this 
information may cause a delay in your request being acted upon by the Board of Directors.   Agenda requests must be 
received by 9:00 a.m. on Monday of the week preceding the monthly meeting date.  Completed forms should be 
delivered to an Officer of the Board of Directors or sent electronically to admin@kccda911.org.  If you have any questions 
regarding this form, please feel free to contact KCCDA’s administrative office at (269) 488-8911.   

Technical Advisory Committee KCCDA 

 

TAC Meeting Minutes 

The attached meeting minutes are presented to the Board for informational purposes, no action 
necessary.   

No action 

Multiple Multiple 

5B-3a

Board Packet - Page #55



MEETING MINUTES for 
Kalamazoo County Consolidated Dispatch Authority 

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
January 10, 2024 – Regular Meeting 

 

ITEM 1 – CALL TO ORDER 

The Regular Meeting of the Technical Advisory Committee was called to order by Chief Scott Merlo at 
10:00 a.m. on Wednesday, January 10, 2024, in the Chief Switalski Meeting Room at Kalamazoo County 
Consolidated Dispatch Authority, 7040 Stadium Drive, Kalamazoo, Michigan. 

ITEM 2 –ROLL CALL 

Members Present:  Scott Merlo (WMUPD), Chris Franks (KDPS), Craig Dieringer (KCMCA), Jeff Christensen 
(KCSO), Chip Everett (KCFCA) 

Others Present:  Ryan McGregor, Jeff Troyer, Torie Rose, Jon Moored, Marty Ftacek, Justin Johnson, 
Marie Gleesing, and Chris McComb  

ITEM 3 – ORGANIZATIONAL ITEMS 

A. Election of Chairperson 
B. Election of Vice-Chairperson 

“Motion by Mr. Dieringer, second by Mr. Christensen to re-elect Mr. Merlo as Chairperson 
and Mr. Ernstes as Vice-Chairperson for 2024.” 

On a voice vote, MOTION CARRIED. 

ITEM 4 - APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

A. Regular Meeting Minutes from November 1, 2023 

“Motion by Mr. Franks, second by Mr. Dieringer to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes 
from November 1, 2023, as presented.” 

On a voice vote, MOTION CARRIED. 

ITEM 5 - CITIZENS’ TIME 

There was none. 

ITEM 6 – FOR CONSIDERATION 

A. Administrative Monthly Report 

Mr. Troyer reviewed the Administrative Monthly Report that was included in the packet. 

 

 

 

Board Packet - Page #56



 

B. Old Business 
 
1. UPDATE:  Conditions and Orders 

Mr. Troyer stated he got an update from County Administrator Catlin. District Court is presen�ng a new 
posi�on to the Board of Commissioners. The new posi�on will be responsible for migra�ng the du�es of 
orders and condi�ons. District Court has a larger staff of LEIN clerk posi�ons and according to 
Administrator Catlin, it sounds like they will do entries for both District and Circuit Court.  

2. Update: CAD and Mobile System RFP 

Mr. Troyer stated the bid opening in December included four proposals. Dispatch’s Administra�ve Team 
has not started reviewing. The core system requirements were about $1 million more than budgetary 
es�mates received eighteen months ago. Staff will be working on reviewing and clarifying costs.  

Mr. Franks stated the City has started going through the RMS proposals. Mr. Christensen stated the 
County has started review of the JMS proposals.  

C. New Business 
 
1. MDOC Talkgroup Request 

Mr. Troyer stated that in May, TAC approved MDOC Inves�gator Arnet to have access to our talkgroups. 
They now would like access to the TAC groups also. We have unified command talkgroups that will need 
to be included also.  

“Mo�on by Mr. Franks second by Mr. Christensen to approve MDOC access to TAC 
channels and unified command talkgroups as presented.” 

On a voice vote, MOTION CARRIED. 

Mr. Troyer stated that MPSCS required a leter of access for MSP for 39SPEV 1 and 2. If any other 
agencies also need one, reach out and one will be provided. 

2. New SOP 09.06 – Mass Casualty Incident 

Mr. Troyer stated mass casualty incident codes will be entered in two phases. The MCI nature code will 
be live on the EMS side to allow activation of the three MCI levels. The recommendations are built on 
the EMS side and will work on the fire side, but run cards take longer to adjust.  The goal is to have all 
the new codes entered by the first quarter. KDPS will be done after because of the amount of time their 
changes will take. If approved, this will take effect on January 16. This has been reviewed by the MCI 
workgroup and will be reviewed by the EMS counsel. 

Dieringer, McGregor 

“Mo�on by Mr. Dieringer, second by Mr. McGregor to approve new SOP 09.06 – Mass Casualty 
Incident as presented.” 

On a voice vote, MOTION CARRIED. 

 

Board Packet - Page #57



ITEM 7 – OTHER ITEMS 

D. Announcements and Member Comments

Ms. Rose stated Dispatch is scheduled for a LEIN audit on February 13. Just a heads up because the law 
enforcement agencies are usually called a�er Dispatch.  

Mr. Dieringer stated that Kalamazoo County has higher than the na�onal average for heart issue saves. 
He will send everyone an invita�on to a gathering on May 10 that will be highligh�ng heart saves.  

E. Next Meeting

The next regular scheduled Technical Advisory Committee meeting will be Wednesday, March 6, 2024, at 
10:00 am, and will be held in the Chief Switalski Meeting Room at KCCDA, 7040 Stadium Drive, Kalamazoo, 
MI 49009.  

ITEM 7 - ADJOURNMENT 

F. Adjournment

The meeting adjourned at 10:36 a.m. 

Board Packet - Page #58


	Board Agenda - 03.14.24
	KCCDA minutes 01.11.24
	COMBINED - Admin Report 02
	Admin Report - 02
	2024 Acalades-Complaints-Suggestions
	February

	Weekly Graphs
	Radio-Phone-CFS Stats
	2024
	2023

	Call Wait Time

	Merc Recon 01.24
	Merc Recon 02.24
	MIClass Recon 01.24
	MIClass Recon 02.24
	BPR 2023 - 03.11.24
	2024 GF - 03.11.24
	2024 CF - 03.11.24
	Memo to KCCDA emailed 1-29-24
	5B-1a  Executive Committee Meeting Minutes
	5B-1a  Executive Committee Meeting Minutes
	Executive Committee minutes 01.09.24

	5B-2a  Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes
	5B-2a Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes
	Personnel Committee Minutes - 02.16.24

	5B-2b  Personnel Policy 3.18 - Dependent Care Assistance Program
	5B-2b  Personnel Policy 3.18 - Dependent Care Assistance Program.pdf
	Personnel Committee
	KCCDA

	3.18  Dependent Care Assisstance Program.pdf

	5B-2c  Michigan Tri-Share MOU with Southwest Child Care Resources
	5B-2c Michigan Tri-Share MOU with Southwest Child Care Resources.pdf
	Personnel Committee
	KCCDA

	Tri-Share Employer MOU.pdf

	5B-2d  Dependent Care Assistance Program Administrative Guidelines
	5B-2d  Dependent Care Assistance Program Administrative Guidelines.pdf
	Personnel Committee
	KCCDA

	ADMIN GUIDELINE - Dependent Care Assistance Program.pdf

	5B-2e  Letter of Understanding with UAW - Dependent Care Assistance Program
	5B-2e  Letter of Understanding with UAW - Dependent Care Assistance Program.pdf
	Personnel Committee
	KCCDA

	LOU with UAW - Dependent Care Assistance Program.pdf

	5B-2f  Executive Director 2023 Performance Appraisal
	5B-2f  Executive Director 2023 Performance Appraisal.pdf
	Personnel Committee
	KCCDA

	ExecDirector Eval .pdf
	ExecDirector Eval Signature Page - 03.05.24.pdf

	5B-2g  2024 Executive Director Performance Objectives
	5B-2g  2024 Executive Director Performance Objectives.pdf
	Personnel Committee
	KCCDA

	MEMO - 2024 Recommended Performance Objectives 02.12.24.pdf

	5B-3a  TAC Meeting Minutes
	5B-3a TAC Meeting Minutes
	TAC minutes - 01.10.24




